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1 EXAMINER JONES: Let's c a l l Cases 14722 

2 and 14724. They're both the a p p l i c a t i o n of EOG 

3 Resources, Incorporated, f o r approval of a nonstandard 

4 o i l spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t and compulsory p o o l i n g i n 

5 Eddy County, New Mexico. C a l l f o r appearances. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce, of 

7 Santa Fe, repr e s e n t i n g the a p p l i c a n t . I have two 

8 witnesses. 

9 EXAMINER JONES: Any other appearances? 

10 MR. BASSORE: Brad Bassore, pro se. 

11 EXAMINER JONES: I d i d get your prehearing 

12 statement, Mr. Bassore. I t came on a Monday, and we were 

13 supposed t o get i t on a Thursday. So what we do then i s 

14 defer t o the a p p l i c a n t t o see i f i t ' s okay w i t h them t o 

15 admit t h i s . 

16 MR. BRUCE: Well, i f he wants t o enter an 

17 appearance, I would o b j e c t t o him t e s t i f y i n g . 

18 EXAMINER BROOKS: You know, there are 

19 d i f f e r e n t r u l e s about t h i s f o r the Commission and the 

20 D i v i s i o n , and I never remember what's what. But w e ' l l 

21 l e t you go ahead and s t a r t your p r e s e n t a t i o n . And I know 

22 I can cross-examine your witness, so --

23 MR. BRUCE: I have two witnesses t o be 

24 sworn i n . 

25 (Two witnesses were sworn.) 
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2 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s • 

3 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

4 BY MR. BRUCE: 

5 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the 

6 record? 

7 A. Douglas W. Hurlbut. 

8 Q. Where do you reside? 

9 A. Midland, Texas. 

10 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

11 A. EOG Resources. I'm a landman w i t h them. 

12 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

13 D i v i s i o n ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert petroleum 

16 landman accepted as a matter of record? 

17 A. Yes, they were. 

18 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

19 i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case? 

20 A. Yes, I am. 

21 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender 

22 Mr. Hurlbut as an expert petroleum landman. 

23 EXAMINER JONES: So q u a l i f i e d . 

24 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Could you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t I 1 

25 f o r the Examiner? 
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1 A. Okay. E x h i b i t 1 i s a p l a t , and i t ' s of 

2 Section 23. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s i n 1929. And i t ' s i n ^ L e a ^ 

3 County -- no. 

4 MR. BASSORE: Eddy County. The com 

5 agreement you sent me said Lea. 

6 A. Okay. And b a s i c a l l y what t h i s depicts i s 

7 Section 23, which i s subject t o a j o i n t o p e rating 

8 agreement t h a t ' s been around since I t h i n k i n the '70s. 

9 I don't know the exact date. I t was o r i g i n a l l y a w e l l 

10 d r i l l e d -- several w e l l s d r i l l e d i n 23. 

11 One t h a t we d r i l l e d was a Morrow w e l l c a l l e d 

12 the Parkway 23 State Com Number 1 Well. And we d r i l l e d 

13 t h a t q u i t e a few years ago, and i t ' s s t i l l producing i n 

14 the Morrow. And the n o r t h h a l f was communitized. 

15 At t h a t time when we d r i l l e d i t , we had l i k e a 

16 potash issue. So i t was deviated or d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l e d 

17 f o r a bottomhole l o c a t i o n up i n the n o r t h h a l f . A f t e r 

18 t h a t date, we decided we wanted t o d r i l l i n t o the Bone 

19 Spring and t e s t the Bone Spring. 

20 Q. Let's go i n t o t h a t . There are two w e l l s 

21 i n d i c a t e d , one i n the n o r t h h a l f / n o r t h h a l f and one i n 

22 the south h a l f / n o r t h h a l f . Could you i d e n t i f y those? 

23 A. The one i n the n o r t h h a l f / n o r t h h a l f i s c a l l e d 

24 our Parkway 23 State Com Number 2H Well, and the one i n 

25 the south h a l f of the n o r t h h a l f i s Parkway 23 State Com 
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1 Number 3H Well. 

2 Q. And those w e l l s have been d r i l l e d ? 

3 A. Yes, they have. 

4 Q. And i n what formation are they completed? 

5 A. They're completed i n the Bone Spring. 

6 Q. Now, you s a i d t h a t -- are a l l of the working 

7 i n t e r e s t s i n both w e l l s committed under a JOA? 

8 A. Yes, they are. I n f a c t , j u s t t o make sure 

9 I've got t h a t r i g h t , the JOA i s dated August 18th, 1978. 

10 Q. Now, i f everybody i s committed t o a JOA, why 

11 are we here today? 

12 A. Well, the reason we're r e a l l y here i s I have 

13 f a i l e d t o get the signature of Basin Petroleum, who's a 

14 working i n t e r e s t owner i n Section 23 through the JOA. 

15 Basin agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the f i r s t w e l l , w i t h the 

16 2H w e l l , and they p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h t h e i r working 

17 i n t e r e s t , subject t o the JOA. 

18 And i n the second w e l l -- I mean the t h i r d 

19 w e l l , which i s the 3H w e l l , they went nonconsent on t h a t 

20 w e l l . And we a c t u a l l y d r i l l e d a w e l l i n south h a l f / s o u t h 

21 h a l f , which i s not p a r t of t h i s deal because i t ' s not a 

22 com deal. I t ' s nonconsent on t h a t one also. 

23 But what happened i s I have f a i l e d t o get h i s 

24 si g n a t u r e . A l l the p a r t i e s t h a t are in v o l v e d have signed 

25 the communitization agreement t h a t ' s r e q u i r e d by the 
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1 State. 

2 Q. This i s a l l State acreage? 

3 A. Correct. And a l l the p a r t i e s have signed 

4 t h a t , and i t ' s -- record t i t l e owners must si g n the com 

5 agreement. And i f they do not sign the com agreement, I 

6 can't get the com agreement approved by the State. 

7 Q. So you are here today seeking t o force pool 

8 Basin Petroleum s o l e l y t o get the com agreement approved 

9 by the State of New Mexico? 

10 A. Correct. I j u s t need h i s signature on the com 

11 agreement and -- so I can hand t h a t over t o the State so 

12 we can get t h a t a l l l i n e d up. And t h a t ' s a l l t h a t i s . 

13 Q. And Mr. Bassore introduced himself. He i s 

14 Basin -- Basin Petroleum i s apparently a c o r p o r a t i o n ; 

15 co r r e c t ? 

16 A. No, I don't t h i n k i t i s . I t ' s a sole 

17 p r o p r i e t o r s h i p . 

18 Q. Okay. Owned by Mr. Bassore, t o the best of 

19 your knowledge? 

20 A. As f a r as I know, i t i s . Correct. 

21 Q. So you're not seeking any -- since there's a 

22 JOA i n place, you're not seeking any pena l t y under the 

23 forc e p o o l i n g statutes? 

24 A. No, no. Like I sa i d , he's -- under the terms 

25 of the JOA, he p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the f i r s t w e l l , and he's 
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1 nonconsent i n the other two w e l l s . 

2 Q. W i l l the forc e p o o l i n g order s u b s t i t u t e f o r 

3 Mr. Bassore's signature f o r the Commissioner of Public 

4 Lands? 

5 A. Correct. I mean i f he -- yeah. E i t h e r h i s 

6 signature on the com agreement, you know, w i l l work, or 

7 i f he doesn't sign, then an order from the OCD w i l l 

8 s a t i s f y the State o f f i c e , according t o J e f f A l b e r t s and 

9 Scott Dawson. 

10 Q. What are E x h i b i t s 2A and 2B, Mr. Hurlbut? 

11 A. 2A i s a l e t t e r I sent out i n June, and i t was 

12 f o r the communitization agreement. We sent t h i s out t o 

13 a l l the p a r t i e s . And t h i s was on the 3H w e l l . 

14 Of course, I guess your E x h i b i t 2B, t h a t ' s the 

15 one dated p r i o r t o t h a t , t h a t i s f o r the 2H. So we 

16 d r i l l e d the 2H w e l l , we sent out the com agreement. And 

17 then we d r i l l e d the 3H, and we sent the com agreement out 

18 on i t . 

19 Q. So you have requested i n w r i t i n g 

20 Mr. Bassore's signature on the com agreements f o r the two 

21 wells? 

22 A. Correct. 

23 Q. And without going i n t o d e t a i l , have there been 

24 other emails or other communication was Mr. Bassore? 

25 A. Yes, there has, as many, I b e l i e v e , as three 
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1 emails t h a t I've sent t o him requesting t h a t he please 

2 sig n the com agreement and t h a t we need t o have t h a t 

3 t h i n g signed and sent t o the State. 

4 Q. Okay. And again, Basin Petroleum Company i s 

5 the record t i t l e owner i n a State o i l and gas lease which 

6 i s in v o l v e d i n each of the w e l l u n i t s ? 

7 A. Correct. 

8 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, E x h i b i t 3 i s 

9 simply my a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e , showing n o t i c e of the 

10 hearing was sent t o Basin Petroleum Company. 

11 MR. BASSORE: I t was received on Friday. 

12 MR. BRUCE: I t was mailed out J u l y 2 8th. 

13 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) E x h i b i t 4, Mr. Hurlbut, does 

14 t h i s a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t the o f f s e t operators or working 

15 i n t e r e s t owners t o the two w e l l u n i t s ? 

16 A. Yes, i t does. 

17 MR. BRUCE: And Mr. Examiner, E x h i b i t 5 i s 

18 my a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e t o the o f f s e t s , which i s re q u i r e d 

19 by the D i v i s i o n , showing a l l the o f f s e t s d i d receive 

20 a c t u a l n o t i c e of the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

21 Q. Again, Mr. Hurlbut, the Commissioner of Public 

22 Lands w i l l not approve the two com agreements u n t i l 

23 e i t h e r Mr. Bassore signs or u n t i l we've got a force 

24 p o o l i n g order? 

25 A. Correct. 
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1 Q. And do you request t h a t the D i v i s i o n -- unless 

2 Mr. Bassore signs, request t h a t the D i v i s i o n enter a 

3 p o o l i n g order? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 prepared by you or 

6 under your s u p e r v i s i o n or compiled from company business 

7 records? 

8 A. Yes, they were. 

9 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the 

10 admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 5. 

11 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 are 

12 admitted. 

13 ( E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 were admitted.) 

14 EXAMINATION 

15 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

16 Q. So t h i s the f i r s t w e l l i s a l l signed -- a l l 

17 i n t e r e s t s are i n on i t . I s t h i s the record t i t l e signed 

18 on f o r the com agreement; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

19 A. We're t a l k i n g about the 2H? 

2 0 Q. Right. 

21 A. Correct. A l l of the p a r t i e s have signed. 

22 There weren't t h a t many, but we've got a l l t h e i r 

23 signatures. I j u s t don't have Basin's on the 2H. 

24 Q. But you have -- they're p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the 

25 w e l l --
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A. Correct. 

2 
! 

Q. -- on t h a t one? 

3 A. Correct. Under the JOA, they're j 

4 p a r t i c i p a t i n g . I 

5 Q. So you're not asking f o r anything but a record 

6 t i t l e s i g n i n g f o r the com agreement on t h a t one? | 

7 A. Correct. I 

8 Q. But on the 3H --

9 A. I t ' s the same t h i n g . j 

10 Q. But you s a i d he hasn't signed yet? 

11 A. No, no. On the 3H, he e l e c t e d not t o | 

12 p a r t i c i p a t e i n the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l under the JOA, ! 

13 and he went nonconsent. So t h a t ' s s t i l l under the JOA. j 

14 Q. So the JOA has a p r o v i s i o n f o r handling 

15 nonconsent i n t e r e s t s ? ! 

16 A. Correct. j 

17 Q. And the D i v i s i o n doesn't need t o address t h a t 

18 at a l l ? 

19 A. No. I t ' s j u s t t h a t he s t i l l needs t o sign the 

20 com agreement on t h a t one, as w e l l , because he's s t i l l a 

21 record t i t l e owner. 

22 Q. And the 4H, which i s i n the southern p a r t of ; 

23 the s e c t i o n --

24 A. I t ' s not a com w e l l . I t ' s a l l on one lease. j 

25 We're not communitizing t h a t , so we don't need a com ! 
1 

1 
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1 agreement on t h a t . . 

2 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. I b e t t e r t u r n t h i s 

3 over t o David here. 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: You want t o 

5 cross-examine, ask questions? 

6 Did you pass the witness? 

7 MR. BRUCE: That's f i n e . I d i d . 

8 EXAMINER JONES: The ap p l i c a n t o b j e c t s 

9 t o --

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: He can cross-examine the 

11 witnesses. I f you're going t o obje c t t o him t e s t i f y i n g , 

12 then you and I w i l l have t o look through t h i s r u l e . And 

13 I t h i n k somebody screwed i t up, and i t ' s probably me. 

14 MR. BRUCE: I don't have any o b j e c t i o n t o 

15 Mr. Bassore que s t i o n i n g Mr. Hurlbut. 

16 ' EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e he has t h a t 

17 r i g h t , i n any case. You may proceed and cross-examine. 

18 I do need t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t you're a p a r t y of 

19 i n t e r e s t . You're the p r i n c i p a l of t h i s o r g a n i z a t i o n t h a t 

2 0 they're t r y i n g t o force pool? 

21 MR. BASSORE: Yeah. 

22 EXAMINER BROOKS: Are you a corporate 

23 o f f i c e r ? 

24 MR. BASSORE: I t ' s a sole p r o p r i e t o r s h i p . 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. You may go ahead. 
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1 MR. BASSORE: Me, myself and I . I'm the 

2 garbage man and eve r y t h i n g . 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: You may ask questions of 

4 the witness. 

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. BASSORE: 

7 Q. Doug, when you s t a t e d t h a t both of the w e l l s 

8 were i n the Bone Spring, are they i n two separate Bone 

9 Springs, the f i r s t -- the Number 2 i s i n the second Bone 

10 Spring and the Number 3 i s i n the f i r s t Bone Spring; i s 

11 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. Yeah. One i s i n the f i r s t Bone Spring sand 

13 and one i s i n the second Bone Spring. But f o r a l l 

14 p r a c t i c a l purposes, i t ' s Bone Spring. 

15 Q. On the com agreement i n the south h a l f of the 

16 n o r t h h a l f , are you seeking t o be able t o produce the 

17 Parkway Number 1 i n i t s v e r t i c a l extent? Because you 

18 guys aren't a p a r t y . You don't have standing t o pool 

19 t h a t 4 0 acres of v e r t i c a l because you don't own any Bone 

20 Spring r i g h t s i n t h a t 40 acres. 

21 A. I'm confused what you're t a l k i n g about. 

22 Q. See what -- t h i s w e l l here. 

23 A. Are you t a l k i n g about the Number 1 well? 

24 Q. Yeah. 

25 A. Tha t ' s a Morrow w e l l . 
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1 Q. Right. But i t has Bone Spring behind the 

2 pipe, which you guys don't own any Bone Spring r i g h t s i n . 

3 So are you seeking t o pool that? 

4 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, we're not 

5 seeking t o fo r c e pool anything regarding Well Number 1. 

6 I t i s a producing Morrow w e l l . 

7 EXAMINER JONES: The deviated well? 

8 MR. BRUCE: Yeah. 

9 THE WITNESS: That's been producing f o r 

10 q u i t e a long time. And I be l i e v e you're nonconsent i n 

11 t h a t w e l l . 

12 Q. (By Mr. Bassore) I t s t i l l a f f e c t s me because 

13 there's t h i r d Bone Spring behind pipe, i n case you wanted 

14 t o recomplete i t , and you guys don't have i n t e r e s t i n the 

15 Bone Spring. 

16 A. I doubt t h a t we'd be recompleting t h a t w e l l . 

17 Q. I might be i n t e r e s t e d when you guys abandon 

18 i t . 

19- A. We'll address t h a t s i t u a t i o n at the time. 

2 0 Q. Are you aware of my request t o sign a com 

21 agreement t o e s t a b l i s h -- t o show me a copy of the 

22 c e n t r a l tank b a t t e r y ? Do you r e c a l l that? 

23 A. I got t h a t on -- i f I remember c o r r e c t l y , I 

24 got t h a t on Monday of t h i s week. 

25 Q. I be l i e v e i t was l a s t Thursday. 
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1 A. I d i d n ' t get i t u n t i l Monday. 

2 Q. That' s p o s s i b l e . 

3 A. I n f a c t , when I t a l k e d t o you or sent you 

4 email on Thursday, you sa i d you had some other 

5 requirements and you were going t o send t h a t t o me. And 

6 I d i d not get t h a t Friday. By the time I l e f t the 

7 o f f i c e , I had not received t h a t . And I a c t u a l l y got i t 

8 Monday, when I came i n t o the o f f i c e . 

9 And I do have a schematic of t h a t c e n t r a l tank 

10 b a t t e r y , which I ' l l be glad t o give you. I guess t h a t ' s 

11 i t there. 

12 Q. Are you aware of any inspectors being on the 

13 lease and c e r t i f y i n g t h a t i t ' s --

14 A. I don't have a clue. 

15 Q. Okay. I be l i e v e i t has been inspected and 

16 found t o be producing i n t o one tank b a t t e r y without 

17 any -- there's a surface commingling problem. Are you 

18 aware of that? 

19 A. No, I'm not aware of i t . 

2 0 Q. Okay. Were the com agreements, e i t h e r of the 

21 two com agreements you sent me, would the State have 

22 approved them, had I executed them as they were? I've 

23 got the --

24 A. W e l l , he re ' s the d e a l . We sent those com 

25 agreements down, and I r e a l i z e the re was a few l i t t l e 
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1 e r r o r s . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me, gentlemen. 

3 You have t o t a l k one at a time. You f i n i s h your answer, 

4 and he can do h i s next question. Go ahead. 

5 A. I understand t h a t a f t e r I had sent those com 

6 agreements out, several months had r o l l e d by, and I 

7 requested again t h a t you sign them. And then we got a 

8 g l a r i n g email from you saying t h a t there were some 

9 problems w i t h them. 

10 And i f you c a l l e d me and said, "Hey, we have a 

11 problem w i t h the p l a t , " or something l i k e t h a t , we would 

12 have f i x e d t h a t a l l up. That's a l l . That's a l l t h a t 

13 would have been. 

14 So I d i d send t h a t out t o you l a s t week. I 

15 b e l i e v e on Monday I d i d send you an email attached t o 

16 those other two com agreements t h a t had been corrected 

17 and asked t h a t you please sign those, and we need three 

18 o r i g i n a l signatures and n o t a r i e s on those each. And I 

19 requested you put those i n the overnight and send them t o 

20 me. 

21 Q. Executed pages o n l y , not the - - I ' v e got them 

22 here. They ' re executed. And the State w o u l d n ' t approve 

23 these because the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n s are comple te ly 

24 i n c o r r e c t . 

25 A. Okay. The county was wrong. 
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1 Q. Yeah. But --

2 A. There was one of them on the l a s t one t h a t was 

3 screwed up. That's my f a u l t . 

4 Q. Well, but --

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: One at a time, please, 

6 gentlemen. F i n i s h your answer. 

7 A. I apologize t h a t t h i s caused a problem. But 

8 i f you would have c a l l e d us and t o l d us, we would have 

9 f i x e d i t . 

10 We're i n the o i l and gas business. We've got 

11 l o t s of w e l l s we're d r i l l i n g . We're doing com agreements 

12 everywhere. And I've got one lady h e l p i n g me s h u f f l i n g 

13 paper back and f o r t h . And i t ' s j u s t --

14 MR. BASSORE: I j u s t --

15 EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me. Do not cut 

16 the witness o f f . 

17 A. I'm s o r r y i t caused some confusion. I f you 

18 would have c a l l e d me, we would have s t r a i g h t e n e d i t out 

19 and I would have r e a l i z e d there was a problem. Some of 

20 the people i n the o f f i c e d i d n ' t catch i t , e i t h e r . 

21 Because we have a series of ways our 

22 agreements are signed, and they go from one person t o the 

23 next, I d i d n ' t catch i t . Pat d i d n ' t catch i t , and -- but 

24 you know, the other p a r t i e s t h a t signed d i d n ' t catch i t , 

25 e i t h e r . They signed i t . 
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1 But we would have cor r e c t e d the pages, which 

2 would have been t h a t e x h i b i t , and f i l e d the c o r r e c t pages 

3 was the State. I f we had not f i l e d the c o r r e c t pages 

4 w i t h the State, J e f f A l b e r t s or Scott Dawson, w i t h the 

5 State O f f i c e , would have c a l l e d me and said, "There's a 

6 problem here," and we would have then got i t s t r a i g h t e n e d 

7 out. 

8 Q. Okay. So when I sent you emails s t a t i n g why I 

9 hadn't ret u r n e d these and I needed some other t h i n g s done 

10 before I retu r n e d the c o r r e c t e d ones, you sent me PDF 

11 f i l e s of the co r r e c t e d ones which are c o r r e c t now? 

12 A. Right. 

13 Q. I s t a t e d I needed t o have t h i s before I signed 

14 i t , which I j u s t now received f o r the f i r s t time. And 

15 not having a chance t o look at i t , I don't know i f , you 

16 know, there's meters on the w e l l s . Because I'm i n 

17 consent and want -- these are 500-barrel-a-day w e l l s , and 

18 there's three of them out the r e . I might want t o know i f 

19 I'm g e t t i n g p a i d on the produc t i o n from the w e l l I've 

20 consented on. 

21 And I'm t o l d by the State Inspector t h a t 

22 they're not i n compliance. There's no meters. They're 

23 a l l going i n t o the same tank b a t t e r y . That's a b i g 

24 problem, i n my view. 

25 The reason we're here i s t o see t h a t these 
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1 three w e l l s are i n compliance w i t h the State of New 

2 Mexico's r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s of produc t i o n p r a c t i c e s . 

3 That's i t . 

4 We've got the executed com agreements here. 

5 The State Inspector i s aware of the s i t u a t i o n . He's 

6 t a l k e d t o the a t t o r n e y up here. I don't know what 

7 they're going t o do, but they're going t o do something. 

8 So whenever they see f i t t o issue the p o o l i n g order or 

9 t e l l me t h a t i t ' s a l l corrected, I ' l l hand o f f the signed 

10 signature pages. P r e t t y simple. 

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r , 

12 Mr. Bruce? 

13 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I have nothing 

14 f u r t h e r on t h i s matter. Regardless of the surface 

15 commingling, i f I could f o l l o w up w i t h a question? 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

17 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. BRUCE: 

19 Q. You have personnel i n your Midland o f f i c e who 

2 0 handle these r e g u l a t o r y matters, surface commingling and 

21 downhole commingling; do you not? 

22 A. Correct. 

23 Q. And are you aware of any v i o l a t i o n s at t h i s 

24 p o i n t , or would you presume t h a t your r e g u l a t o r y a f f a i r s 

25 people are t a k i n g care of these issues? 
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A. I was not aware of any problems. I've not 

2 been t o l d of any problems. I mean I guess i f there i s 

3 one, we need t o look at i t . But I'm not aware of ; 

4 anything. 

5 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s t h a t separate from a 

6 signature on a com agreement? 

7 A. Correct. 

8 Q. Even i f Mr. Bassore handed you the signature 

9 pages today, you would s t i l l have t o go back and make 

10 sure there i s compliance w i t h surface commingling? 

11 A. Correct. We s t i l l need t o get t o the bottom 

12 of t h a t . I f he f e e l s there's a problem, we need t o get 

13 t o the bottom. 

14 Q. That's separate and d i s t i n c t from g e t t i n g the 

15 com? 

16 A. Correct. 

17 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

18 Mr. Examiner. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Have you 

20 s a i d e v e r y t h i n g you wanted t o say, Mr. Bassore? 

21 MR. BASSORE: More or l e s s . Except my 

22 p o i n t about t h a t 40 acres, there's a c t u a l l y three -- i f 

23 these p o o l i n g orders are granted, does t h a t e n t i t l e them j 

24 t o -- f o r a l l three Bone Springs? - j 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I don't t h i n k so, j 

h 
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1 but I'ra not sure. 

2 MR. BRUCE: A l l we're seeking i s f o r these 

3 two w e l l s . We're not t r y i n g t o seek anything regarding 

4 the Number 1. 

5 Furthermore, despite what Mr. Bassore says, 

6 t h i s whole s e c t i o n i s under a JOA. So even though EOG 

7 doesn't own a s p e c i f i c i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 40 acres where 

8 the Number 1 w e l l i s bottomed, under the JOA, they own a 

9 c o n t r a c t u a l i n t e r e s t . 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: That i n t e r e s t would be 

11 covered by the JOA, whatever the JOA says. But I 

12 don't -- a p o o l i n g order b a s i c a l l y only authorizes them 

13 t o pool f o r the purpose of the w e l l t h a t ' s s t a t e d i n the 

14 p o o l i n g order. I f they want t o propose a d i f f e r e n t w e l l 

15 or do something w i t h another w e l l under the po o l i n g 

16 order, then they have t o f o l l o w the p r o v i s i o n s under the 

17 r u l e . 

18 MR. BRUCE: That's c o r r e c t . And EOG w i l l 

19 do t h a t , i f necessary. 

2 0 EXAMINER JONES: But you're only asking 

21 f o r a p o o l i n g of the 160s? 

22 MR. BRUCE: Yes 

23 EXAMINER JONES: That w e l l would probably 

24 be a 40-acre - - d i f f e r e n t spacing. 

25 MR. BASSORE: I t w o u l d be a s e p a r a t e 
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1 spacing. 

2 EXAMINER JONES: Separate deal. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. I t h i n k Mr. 

4 Bassore has probably s a i d -- you've s a i d everything you 

5 want t o say? 

6 MR. BASSORE: I guess I ' d ask a question. 

7 I have signed these. I f I hand these t o you, can you see 

8 t h a t they're put together properly? 

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: They're between you and 

10 Mr. Hurlbut. I f you have a problem w i t h the surface 

11 commingling issue, then you need t o take t h a t up w i t h the 

12 A r t e s i a D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . 

13 MR. BASSORE: Okay. 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: So I t h i n k I w i l l t u r n 

15 i t back t o you, and you can take the case under 

16 advisement. 

17 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, j u s t f o r record 

18 t i t l e , f o r the next case, we also have a g e o l o g i s t . I 

19 don't know t h a t i t ' s necessary, but i t ' s up t o you. 

2 0 EXAMINER BROOKS: You're asking f o r us t o 

21 form a nonstandard u n i t . So I t h i n k as of now, the 

22 r u l e s , the way they are, we need a g e o l o g i s t . 

23 MR. BRUCE: That's f i n e . 

24 MR. BRUCE: I ' l l c a l l Mr. Morris t o the 

25 stand. 
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EXAMINER JONES: And your t r i p i s not 

2 wasted t h i s morning. 

3 MR. BASSORE: I'm not a formal l e g a l guy, 

4 but I had a reason. I d i d n ' t do i t j u s t a r b i t r a r i l y . 

5 (Mr. Bassore e x i t e d the hearing.) 

6 JAMES MORRIS 

7 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

8 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

9 BY MR. BRUCE: 

10 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name and c i t y of 

11 residence f o r the record? 

12 A. My name i s W i l l i a m James Morris. I l i v e i n 

13 Midland, Texas. 

14 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

15 A. Geologist f o r EOG. 

16 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

17 Di v i s i o n ? 

18 A. I have. 

19 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter of 

20 record? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the geology involved i n 

23 t h i s case? 

24 A. I am. 

25 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. 
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1 M orris as an expert petroleum engineer. 

2 EX7AMINER JONES: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

3 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Morris, there's already 

4 been discussion about the f i r s t and second Bone Spring. 

5 Could you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 6 f o r the Examiner and discuss 

6 those zones? 

8 p i l o t holes or v e r t i c a l w e l l s i n Section 23. And the 

9 s e c t i o n colored i n pink near the top p a r t of t h a t i s the 

10 f i r s t Bone Spring sand i n t e r v a l . That's where we d r i l l e d 

11 our 3H w e l l . And the lower s e c t i o n t h a t ' s colored green 

12 i s the second Bone Spring sand t h a t we d r i l l e d our 2H and 

13 4H w e l l s l a t e r a l l y i n . 

14 Q. And the zones are continuous across a l l of 

15 Section 23? 

16 A. Yes, they are. 

17 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 7? 

18 A. E x h i b i t 7 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the top of the 

19 f i r s t Bone Spring sand. Throughout the area surrounding 

20 Section 23, i t shows t h a t the formation dips t o the 

21 southeast l a r g e l y . 

22 Q. I s s t r u c t u r e important f o r these wells? 

23 A. Just t o a s s i s t you i n keeping the w e l l i n the 

24 zone of the f i r s t Bone Spring. 

25 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 8? 

7 A. E x h i b i t 6 i s a c r o s s - s e c t i o n o f a l l the f i v e 
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1 A. E x h i b i t 8 i s a•net pay Isopach map of the 

2 p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than 10 percent i n t h a t pink zone across 

3 the s e c t i o n there t h a t -- and i t shows t h a t across' 

4 Section 23 there i s net pay of 50 t o 150 f e e t i n t h a t 

5 i n t e r v a l . 

6 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 9? 

7 A. E x h i b i t 9 i s a gross Isopach i n t e r v a l map of 

8 of the f i r s t Bone Spring sand. I t includes the e n t i r e 

9 i n t e r v a l shown i n pink on the cro s s - s e c t i o n . And i t 

10 shows t h a t the f i r s t Bone Spring sand i n t e r v a l i s 150 t o 

11 over 200 f e e t t h i c k across the e n t i r e Section 23. I t 

12 shows c o n t i n u i t y of the r e s e r v o i r or the s e c t i o n across 

13 there. 

14 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 11? 

15 A. E x h i b i t 11 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the base of 

16 the second Bone Spring sand, and i t again shows the 

17 formation dips o f f t o the southeast. /And i t ' s used 

18 e s s e n t i a l l y to.keep -- a s s i s t keeping the w e l l i n the 

19 zone, i n the second sand. 

2 0 Q. Based on your maps, are the f i r s t and second 

21 Bone Spring continuous across the wellbores of the two 

22 w e l l s we're here f o r today? 

23 A. Yes, they are. 

24 Q. You would expect each q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n 

25 t o c o n t r i b u t e t o product ion? 
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1 A. Yes, they should. 

2 Q. F i n a l l y , could you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 12 and 

3 maybe j u s t b r i e f l y describe how - - t h i s i s f o r the Parkway 

4 23 Number 2H w e l l . Describe j u s t very b r i e f l y how EOG 

5 has been d r i l l i n g and completing the -- i t ' s h o r i z o n t a l 

6 Bone Spring well? 

7 A. S t a r t e d o f f d r i l l i n g a p i l o t hole, g e t t i n g a 

8 l o g on t h a t , p i c k i n g a spot t o go h o r i z o n t a l . And then 

9 engineers design a w e l l path curve t o d r i l l i t down and 

10 d r i l l 4,000 f e e t e s s e n t i a l l y across the 160-acre spacing 

11 i n there. 

12 Q. Do you have -- approximately how many 

13 completion stages are there? 

14 A. They're going t o have s i x stages, w i t h f o u r 

15 c l u s t e r s per stage. 

16 Q. And there was some comment about the w e l l s . 

17 Have these been s u c c e s s f u l l y completed? 

18 A. Yes, they have. 

19 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 6 through 12 prepared by you or 

2 0 under your supervision? 

21 A. Yes, they were. 

22 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the 

23 admission of E x h i b i t s 6 through 12. 
24 EXAMINER JONES: E x h i b i t s 6 through 12 

25 w i l l be admitted. 
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( E x h i b i t s 6 through 12 were admitted.) 

2 EX/AM I NAT ION 

3 BY EXAMINER JONES: 

4 Q. Mr. Morris, the Delaware above the Brushy 

5 Canyon, i s t h a t a clean l i n e ? 

6 A. The f i r s t Bone Spring lime s e c t i o n sets above 

7 the f i r s t sand. So there i s several hundreds of f e e t of 

8 carbonate above t h i s sand zone. 

9 Q. You c a l l them Bone Spring? 

10 A. Yes, i t ' s Bone Spring. 

11 Q. A l l of a sudden, you get t o sand. I s i t 

12 marine sand? 

13 A. I t ' s -- yes. Yes i t would be a marine sand. 

14 I t ' s a low system t r a c k type sand. 

15 Q. Low energy? 

16 A. Low sea l e v e l . Sea l e v e l would drop, and i t 

17 would be deposited d u r i n g a low stand. 

18 Q. You're t a r g e t i n g the top p a r t of that? 

19 A. Yes, the upper 50 f e e t of t h a t . 

20 Q. I s t h a t where you got your mud lo g shows? 

21 A. Right. On t h i s c ross-section, you see those 

22 l i t t l e green and red boxes out on the r i g h t there? Those. 

23 are where there were mud l o g shows. I n the f i r s t w e l l 

24 there, there's one r i g h t at the very top of the f i r s t j 

25 Bone Spring. So there was a l i t t l e show there. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
13463815-5b4c-4ce0-9884-9bf379ea99fe 



Page 28 

1 Q. I t wouldn't be very good f o r a v e r t i c a l w e l l , 

2 but you t h i n k a h o r i z o n t a l w e l l w i l l do i t ? 

3 A. Yeah. There on the maps, I t h i n k , i f you look 

4 on E x h i b i t 7, there's a Parkway f i e l d l o c ated i n Section 

5 34. A l l those w e l l s t h a t are c i r c l e d i n l i g h t green, 

6 those are v e r t i c a l w e l l s t h a t haven't been p e r f o r a t e d i n 

7 the f i r s t . Some have been commingled w i t h the second 

8 Bone Spring sand. But those are probably 30 t o 80,000 

9 b a r r e l s per w e l l . And we've determined t h a t we could be 

10 much more p r o f i t a b l e t o go h o r i z o n t a l . 

11 Q. So i n your h o r i z o n t a l w e l l , how much do you 

12 expect from t h a t well? 

13 A. Probably 250 t o 300,000 b a r r e l s . There i s --

14 the w e l l i n Section 23 t h a t i s colored green, I t h i n k 

15 t h a t w e l l has made -- the v e r t i c a l w e l l has made l i k e 

16 100,000 b a r r e l s out of the f i r s t Bone Spring sand. So I 

17 b e l i e v e -- I could be wrong on those numbers. 

18 Q. So you could d r i l l one h o r i z o n t a l across 

19 cheaper than 4 0 v e r t i c a l s and get more production? 

20 A. Right, get more bang f o r your buck o v e r a l l . 

21 Q. But you probably can't draw i t down as low as 

22 you could these v e r t i c a l w e l l s because you can get your 

23 pump deeper i n the v e r t i c a l w e l l s than the h o r i z o n t a l ? 

24 A. That's probably c o r r e c t . I'm not an expert 

25 th e r e . 
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Q. Well, do you expect a l l f o u r of those normal 

2 40-acre u n i t s t h a t ' s being b i s e c t e d by the w e l l t o 

3 c o n t r i b u t e t o the well? 

4 A. Absolutely, yes. I mapped some of those sands 

5 i n d i v i d u a l l y . I d i d n ' t b r i n g those maps w i t h me. But 

6 they do continue across the f u l l s e c t i o n . 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k you asked a l l 

8 the r i g h t questions, Mr. Jones. I don't t h i n k I need t o 

9 add anything. 

10 EXAMINER JONES: . I never pass up a chance 

11 t o question a g e o l o g i s t . 

12 MR. BRUCE: I d i d have one question I 

13 f o r g o t t o ask Mr. Morris, since I know you're i n t e r e s t e d , 

14 Mr. Jones. 

15 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. BRUCE: 

17 Q. I s there the p o t e n t i a l -- we're here j u s t 

18 force p o o l i n g these two wellbores. I s there p o t e n t i a l 

19 when you say there are two w e l l s i n the second Bone 

20 Spring and one i n the f i r s t Bone Spring at t h i s point? 

21 A. H o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , yes. 

22 Q. I s there the o p p o r t u n i t y a t a l a t e r date t o 

23 come i n and f l i p those s i t u a t i o n s and d r i l l a d d i t i o n a l 

24 w e l l s t o t e s t the untested zones? 

25 A. Well, yes. We plan t o d r i l l a f i r s t Bone 
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1 Spring sand about at the same l o c a t i o n as the 2H w e l l and 

2 a second where the t h i r d w e l l i s located, yes. We have 

3 plans t o d r i l l those. 

4 EXAMINER JONES: W i l l you d r i l l them at 

5 d i f f e r e n t surface wellbores? 

6 THE WITNESS: Yes. I t w i l l be a d i f f e r e n t 

7 surface hole. 

8 EXAMINER JONES: Why i s that? Why don't 

9 you d r i l l a bigger hole v e r t i c a l l y and d r i l l two 

10 h o r i z o n t a l ? 

11 THE WITNESS: Having two -- producing two 

12 zones out of the same wellbore j u s t adds complications t o 

13 i t . So I t h i n k t o make i t simpler i s why we're doing i t 

14 separately. 

15 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Thank you very 

16 much. Thank you Mr. Morris and Mr. Hurlbut. 

17 I f nothing f u r t h e r --

18 MR. BRUCE: Nothing f u r t h e r i n these two 

19 cases. 

2 0 EXAMINER JONES: -- w e ' l l take cases 14 722 

21 and 14724 under advisement. 

22 * * * 

23 

24 

25 
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4 I , JACQUELINE R. LUJAN, New Mexico CCR #91, DO 

5 HEREBY CERTIFY t h a t on August 18, 2011, proceedings i n 

6 the above captioned case were taken before me and t h a t I 

7 d i d r e p o r t i n stenographic shorthand the proceedings set 

8 f o r t h h e r e i n , and the foregoing pages are a t r u e and 

9 c o r r e c t t r a n s c r i p t i o n t o the best of my a b i l i t y . 

10 I FURTHER CERTIFY t h a t I am n e i t h e r employed by 

11 nor r e l a t e d t o nor contracted w i t h any of the p a r t i e s or 

12 attorne y s i n t h i s case and t h a t I have no i n t e r e s t 

13 whatsoever i n the f i n a l d i s p o s i t i o n of t h i s case i n any 

14 c o u r t . 

15 WITNESS MY HAND t h i s 30th day of August, 2011. 

16 

17 

18 

19 UaiQiidf/i&fi--
Ja^quel/yhe R. L u j a n , CC| 

20 E x p i r e s ^ 1 2 / 3 1 / 2 0 1 1 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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